### HUDSON, NH BOARD OF SELECTMEN Minutes of the August 23, 2005 Meeting

6:30-7:15 p.m. Labor Relations Session, pursuant to RSA 91-A:2 I (b)

- 1. CALL TO ORDER by Chairman Kenneth J. Massey at 7:19 p.m.
- 2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE led by Selectman William P. Cole.

#### 3. ATTENDANCE

Selectmen: Kenneth J. Massey, Teresa Stewart, William P. Cole, Kathleen R. MacLean and Richard J. Maddox

<u>Staff/Others:</u> Steve Malizia, Town Administrator; Priscilla Boisvert, Executive Assistant; Shawn Murray, Fire Chief; Tom Sommers, Town Engineer; Joe MacLean; Leo Bernard; Howard Dilworth, Jr; Ted Luszey and Octave Nour

#### 4. PUBLIC INPUT

A proclamation was read by the Chairman in recognition of Kids Day America, promoting the health and well-being of children, and presented to Dr. Scott Szela of Chiropractic Works, 28 Lowell Road.

**Leo Bernard, 3 Bungalow Ave**, said Old Home Days was a great weekend in Hudson. He thanked Selectmen MacLean and Maddox for the great job they did interviewing people for Cable TV. He also thanked everyone who stopped by the HCTV booth, as well as the Cable Committee members and Coleman for their participation in the event.

# 5. <u>NOMINATIONS & APPOINTMENTS</u>

- **A.** Sewer Utility Committee (1 member, term to expire 12/31/05) No applicants.
- **B. Zoning Board of Adjustment** (1 alternate, term to expire 12/31/06)

Letter of resignation from Dave Buhlman, as an alternate member of the ZBA, due to his move to Litchfield. *Motion by Selectman Stewart, seconded by Selectman MacLean, to acknowledge the resignation of Dave Buhlman, with regrets, but with the Board's thanks and appreciation for his service, carried 5-0.* 

Octav Nour, 288 Lowell Road, said he has been in the United States since 1990 and has lived in Hudson since 1997. He works in Beverly in engineering. His background is a registered nurse. He wanted to serve on the ZBA because he likes Hudson and he lives in a peaceful neighborhood, where he is raising his two boys. He doesn't have any intention of leaving the Town. He'd like to help by serving his community as much as he can and will listen to the people to try to understand their problems. To be part of the community, he'd feel like he's in a family, like in his old country. He thanked the Board for this opportunity, saying if he wasn't appointed tonight, he'd continue to apply. Selectman Maddox asked Mr. Nour if he'd ever attended a ZBA meeting. Mr. Nour said yes, adding that he was committed to putting in the amount of hours necessary to serve on the board. Selectman MacLean asked what Mr. Nour's first language was. Mr. Nour said Romanian. Chairman Massey said there has been some indication Mr. Nour had some dealings with the Zoning Board and the Community Development group, relative to zoning questions. He asked for an explanation. Mr. Nour said he did. His address was zoned residential, so they applied for a variance to open a business, which was denied. There were things he didn't understand, how to present his case. Since then, he has read a lot of literature on the web site and he sees how things work, the regulations, etc. He sees that he was 99% wrong, but he didn't know how to present it. He tired to win by hiring a lawyer and going to court, but he lost and didn't get the variance. Since March, the zoning has changed and he's in a commercial area, so he can open his own business. Chairman Massey said in order for Mr. Nour to open his own business, he would have to have the necessary frontage, and it couldn't be a dual use. He thinks it would be 200' for the home and 200' for the business. Mr. Nour said he was in the process of asking the Zoning Board for a variance. If he is unable to obtain it, he will move to another place in order to reach his goal. This has nothing to do with his applying to serve on the board. He wants to be part of the community, whether or not he lives at 288 Lowell Road. Selectman Maddox didn't believe that lot has a site plan for a business, even though it is zoned commercial. Mr. Nour knew that he would have to have a site plan. His intent is to apply for the variance. If they cannot do that, then they will move to another location in order to develop his business.

Motion by Selectman Cole, seconded by Selectman MacLean, to suspend their normal rules to vote on this application this evening carried 5-0.

Motion by Selectman Cole, seconded by Selectman MacLean, to appoint Octav Nour to the alternate position on the ZBA, term to expire 12/31/06, carried 4-1. Selectman Maddox voted in opposition. Chairman Massey explained that the Town Clerk would contact Mr. Nour to arrange for his swearing in, after which he can begin to serve in his official capacity. Mr. Nour thanked the Board.

## 6. <u>CONSENT ITEMS</u>

Motion by Selectman MacLean, seconded by Selectman Stewart, to receive the consent items, A-D, as noted or appropriate, carried 5-0.

## A. <u>Assessing Items</u>

2004 Abatements, 110 Lowell Road, 11 Executive Drive and 65 River Road w/recommendation to approve; 220 Lowell Road, w/recommendation to deny.

## B. <u>Licenses and Permits</u>

Outdoor Gathering Permit for Harvest Fest

## C. Acceptance of Minutes

Board of Selectmen's Minutes of August 9, 2005

### D. <u>Calendar</u>

8/24 5:30 Water Utility Committee in BOS Meeting Room

8/24 7:00 Planning Board in CD Meeting Room

8/25 5:30 Swearing in of Police Officer @ HPD

8/25 1:00 Trustees of the Trust Funds

8/25 7:00 Lower Merrimack River Committee at NRPC

8/25 7:00 Open Space Committee in BOS Meeting Room

8/25 7:30 ZBA in CD Meeting Room

8/27 Boot Drive @ Ferry/Derry/Chase Street Intersections

#### 7. OLD BUSINESS

# <u>Update of the Economic Development Conference</u> (Selectman Bill Cole)

Selectman Cole said the ad hoc committee that is looking into the possibility of conducting the second annual Economic Development Conference—with the first one being back in 1992. Since being given the go-ahead to form this committee, they had their first meeting on July 28. The Town was represented by him and Sean Sullivan. Judy Vokes and Kevin Rauseo represented the Chamber of Commerce. They discussed a number of items, setting a target date for planning purposes of May 13, 2006, which is a Saturday. This date is subject to change, based on the realities between now and then. They are hoping to hold the conference, as they did back in 1992, at the Webb Palmer Tech facility. He hasn't talked to anyone from Alvirne yet, in case someone hears this and is surprised. They decided to extend an invitation to the Rotary Club to possible have a member on the committee. Raisha Valesco works for the NH Dept. of Resource and Economic Development in an office that serves the Nashua area, and she has graciously accepted to be a part of the group, as well. The next meeting will be in September, probably at the end of the month, depending on people's schedules. He will keep the Board updated, as they move forward—especially if they need some money. Chairman Massey thanked Selectman Cole, saying he knows he will be putting a lot of work into this, as will all the other members of that committee. He hopes it will be as successful as the first one was.

## 8. <u>NEW BUSINESS</u>

## A. <u>Fire Department's 1969 Forestry Vehicle</u>

Fire Chief Shawn Murray said the Fire Department currently has three forestry vehicles—a 1969 forestry that the department acquired as federal surplus property and two Ford F-250's, 4 x 4's, purchased in 2000 and 2001. In '01, the Board of Selectmen authorized the Fire Department to keep all three vehicles until such time as the 1969 unit could no longer be repaired, or was no longer cost-effective to spend money on its maintenance. The '69 unit has been assigned to the Robinson Road Fire Station. The two newer units provide the department with the needed resources for brush fires. The '69 unit recently had two batteries replaced and other minor maintenance done to it. It is not used routinely as it is hard to start and difficult to drive and maneuver. I has limited to no further operational or monetary value to the Town or the Fire Department. He wanted to remove this vehicle from their inventory by 1) selling it to Bristol, NH for \$1 or 2) put it out to bid. Bristol is currently looking for such a vehicle to replace one of theirs that is out of service. The cost of putting this out to bid may not offset what the Town gets for it in advertising cost and staff time. Selectman Stewart found it hard to believe that Bristol's vehicle was in worse shape than Hudson's. Selectman MacLean asked if the vehicle could be sold for more than \$1. She'd like to be nice to the people of Bristol, but she'd rather be nicer to the people of Hudson. Chief Murray said Bristol was looking for a donation of surplus equipment from various State departments to meet their needs until they can find something else. Selectman Maddox said this was one of those cases where it makes sense to donate it up the food chain—as long as the Town doesn't fill the gas tank, which will double the value of the vehicle. He was in favor of transferring it for \$1. Selectman Stewart agreed, if Bristol agrees to come and get it. Motion by Selectman Maddox, seconded by Selectman Cole, to authorize the Fire Chief to sell the 1969 Kaiser Jeep Forestry. Unit (surplus equipment) as is to the Town of Bristol, NH for the sum of \$1, carried 4-1. Selectman MacLean voted in opposition.

## B. Award of Contract for Water Looping Project on River Road

Town Engineer Tom Sommers said at Town Meeting this project, which was part of a series of projects with regard to the water system, was approved. This project, expedited at the request of the Board, is a 2,000' section of water line on River Road that connects, or loops, what is now a single dead-end line. This will allow, to some extent, the pressure to increase because you have a larger volume of water being able to flow in that area. That is somewhat limited because there isn't a tank yet, but more importantly, it provides for a second way for water to get to a substantial portion of the south end, if there were to be a break or some type of failure or some reason to shut down water in some section of the south end. They did the design work and went out to bid, in accordance with Town Code. Three bids were received, and he was recommending acceptance of the low bid from Merrill Construction at \$384,252. It is well within the budget and within the engineer's estimate. There were no inconsistencies in the bid. He has worked with this contractor in the past and found them to be reasonable and reputable and very well qualified. He expected that work would start in September and be finished in late October. Selectman Maddox questioned some of the verbiage in the document. Chairman Massey said this project starts at the corner of Dracut and River Road. Mr. Sommers said this goes from in front of the entrance to the driving range down to the other end, just north of BAE Systems' entrance. Selectman Maddox asked if there was an option to increase the diameter. Mr. Sommers said the diameter is 16."

(Start Tape 1-B)

Motion by Selectman MacLean, seconded by Selectman Cole, to award the River Road Water Main (looping) Project to Merrill Construction, in an estimated amount of \$384,252, as recommended by the Town Engineer and Finance Director, carried 5-0.

## C. September 11 Observance

Town Administrator Steve Malizia said the Town has held an observance for the past three years. It is coming to that time of year again, so he wanted to bring this forward for the Board's attention. For information, he attached a copy of last year's program for the Board and asked if they wanted to schedule an observance for this year. Chairman Massey said he has already talked to the American Legion and they are prepared to provide two buglers and the honor guard. They would then talk with the two Chiefs

about the placing of the wreath. Selectman MacLean said since it's on a Sunday this year, and out of respect for the church-going folk, if they could schedule this for early afternoon. Chairman Massey said when he talked to the American Legion, they were looking at 1:00 or 2:00. Selectman Stewart said the reason it had been observed in the morning is because that's when the planes left Logan, so she wanted to keep the observance in the morning. Selectman MacLean said this is the first year it is on a Sunday. The consensus of the Board was to hold it at 9:00 a.m. Chairman Massey said they would also invite Ms. Kovalcin to attend.

### 9. OTHER BUSINESS/REMARKS BY THE SELECTMEN

## A. <u>Selectman Cole</u>

- 1) Dedication of Police Department's Community Room -- Motion by Selectman Cole, seconded by Selectman Stewart, that the Police Department's Community Room be dedicated and renamed the Ann Marie Seabury Community Room in memory of, and in tribute to Ann's many years of selfless service and devotion to the Hudson community and the wellbeing of its residents. Selectman Cole said any tribute in memory of Ann would be insignificant to the contribution that she made to this Town, more years than any of them can recall. Ann never played favorites. She was on elected boards, appointed committees, she volunteered to this, she volunteered to that—she never played favorites. However, from his personal experience with Ann over the years, he felt that there might just be a trace of a special feeling on the part of Ann Seabury for the men and women of the Police Department. If it wasn't for Ann's unwavering support of the Police Department, there is a good chance that Chief Gendron's desk would still be located just about where the Chairman is sitting tonight. Ann Seabury was a driving force and in total support of the new Police facility, all the way from the budget that dates back to '92 through Town Meeting of '93, construction in '94 and finally to the opening in 1995. The other item that sticks in his mind is the fact that Ann never missed an officer's swearing-in, either doing the swearingin, or as a member of the audience. If you were a new police officer in Town, the test, the interviews and the recommendations that went into getting to that level were very critical. But, quite frankly, if Ann didn't say you were a Hudson cop, you weren't a Hudson cop. He has no doubt whatsoever that this coming Thursday, when Hudson's newest Police Officer Brandon Cannata is sworn in, Ann, with a smile on her face and a twinkle in her eye, will be standing right there to make sure it's official. *Vote: Motion carried 5-0*.
- 2) New Fire Truck -- Relative to the new fire truck, the contract has been signed and the PO has been issued. They are attempting to set up a pre-construction meeting next week in Massachusetts at the distributor's location. They are trying to get in a rep from KME in PA.
- Bay doors at Central Fire Station. The Fire Department is presently in the process of developing an RFP, soliciting cost proposals for providing a detailed cost estimate for raising the current height of the Central Fire Station's bay doors and the development of a bid spec package, technical documentation and/or drawings, supporting a subsequent RFP for the actual renovation project. It is anticipated that the original RFP will be made available to and subsequently responded to by architectural design companies familiar with fire station operational and functional facility requirements. Chairman Massey said the second step wouldn't be a RFP; it would be a request for bid response. Selectman Cole said it would be looking for a proposal to actually do the project.
- 4) BOS Liaison to Joint Committee -- Motion by Selectman Cole, seconded by Selectman Stewart, that the Selectman liaison representative to the Joint Town/School Committee, as contained in Chairman's Liaison Recommendation dated 5 April 2005 and approved by the Board at its 5 April 2005 meeting, be eliminated, effective immediately. Selectman MacLean felt she knew the outcome of the motion, but she wanted to clarify a few points before they vote. Everyone is asking questions that they seemingly had the answers to before they got started. Once they got started, it seems that the questions changed, but the answers remain the same. The first question was why—the mission of the Joint Committee. She said the Historian, Selectman Stewart, said it was "to see where the Town and the School could save money doing projects together." Then it was how do they go about this. She quoted Selectman Cole, who said, "It was envisioned that proposals, etc., which came out of the Joint Committee would be presented to the various member organizations by their appointed liaisons for their consideration, information and the like." That's exactly what the Joint Committee was planning to do—discuss topics and, out of the Joint Committee, out of those conversations and ideas, they would come to their respective boards with information and the like. Now that that has been done, they are being told no, and she didn't quite know why. She quoted Chairman Massey, "Clarity is needed in the establishment of shared objectives," but they cannot dictate what the boards can and can't discuss when it comes to a free flow of ideas that might save the taxpayer money. A very important thing she'd like to clarify once and for all is the talk about the email that seemed to come across as so offensive. At the last meeting, Chairman Massey said, "Typically, if someone said their objective is X and stated what information was needed to do that, that's a different question than just saying, 'I need all this information,' with no clear objective stated as to the end purpose of the information, what it was going to be used for." Selectman MacLean said that never set will with her because she was trying to say at the last meeting that that e-mail wasn't addressed to any department head whatsoever. That e-mail was addressed to the Joint Committee. The department heads received another e-mail, which she believes covers all of the points. "As you know, the BOS has asked the Joint Committee to look into the facts surrounding the IT departments in the Town and in the School. The following questions are designed to help the Joint Committee put together some ideas for cost savings. I would appreciate it if you would forward this to your department's IT specialist and ask them to answer the questions and then get those answer to me at k.maclean. I can't even speculate as to how time-consuming this may be because I'm not really sure what all those questions are even asking, but I am sure they will know. Please note that we would like it returned by August 19. Thank you for your cooperation in this matter. Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions. Thanks again. Kathleen." That e-mail clearly states why those questions are being asked, who is asking them and it's in no way bossy or mean-spirited. At the last meeting, it seemed that the e-mails were something from the Lost Lagoon. Relative to the questions themselves, Chairman Massey had stated that probably now the questions would be addressed through a different channel, through the budget process and the Budget Committee, which is wonderful,

but she wanted to be on record as saying that if this Board chooses to address the questions as part of the upcoming budget process will be too late for any type of solution to be addressed in the upcoming budget cycle. By having the Joint Committee gather the information now, and look to address ways of cutting costs, then present a solution or solutions to the boards in time for the budget process to begin, it seems like a much more common sense, efficient approach to saving the taxpayer money. Her last question may be rhetorical, but what harm can come from seeking this information and addressing any possible areas for improvement? What harm?

Selectman Maddox said he has to echo that same question—what harm? This is a very busy board with all of the nuances and details they deal with. The Joint Committee was supposed to look from a higher level and try to look at possibilities between all the organizations within the Town that spend taxpayer dollars that if there was a method by which the School Board or the Library or the Town could find a way to save the taxpayer money. He couldn't see why dissolving this position, in such a hasty manner, is a good idea. He hoped the motion would not pass and they could at least give it a few tries to see where it goes. Chairman Massey said he has contacted the Chairman of the School Board, who has agreed to a meeting, along with the Superintendent and Town Administrator. They are coordinating their calendars to come up with a date as soon as they can so the two boards can be truly in sync as to their purposes and a methodology to get there that both boards agree in advance is the way to go. The issue is not that they shouldn't be looking at areas where the Town boards can corroborate; the issue is to have clarity of purpose and that both boards are in total sync with the way it would work and how it happens. They would go back to their respective boards with a recommendation on the next steps for making that happen.

**Vote:** Motion carried 3-2. Selectmen MacLean and Maddox voted in opposition.

#### B. Selectman MacLean

- 1) Hudson Council on Aging -- Selectman MacLean said this group, formerly known as the Hudson Seniors, On Monday, August 29, from 5:30 8:00 there will be a silent auction at Charman's Restaurant. For more information, call Lucille Boucher at 889-1803 for tickets, or call Gary Dearborn, Herb Simpson or Charman's for information on getting tickets. Chairman Massey said tickets can also be picked up at the Daily Grind in the south end of Town.
- 2) Police Department Blood Drive was today at the Community Center and it was nice to see everyone there. She actually saw the Chairman giving his blood, which was a nice thing to do, besides volunteering.
- Old Home Days Selectman MacLean congratulated the Hudson Historical Society for the past weekend and thanked Mr. Lathrop for all of his hard work and that of his committee. It was a fun time for all. She thanked the Cable Committee for being an entertaining and educational presence at Old Home Days. She hoped everyone stopped by the booth and picked up their free key tag, on which are printed the broadcast channels, as well as the phone number, so if someone gets an idea for producing a program or program ideas, call that number to get started. She hoped the public relations campaign with the key tags proved to be fruitful, not only resulting in more viewers, but more programmers and producers, as well.
- 4) <u>Cable Transfer Public Hearing</u> On Thursday, August 25 at 7:00 p.m. in the Londonderry HS cafeteria, there will be a public hearing on the transfer of cable from Adelphia to Comcast. It can also be viewed on Channel 30.

## C. Selectman Maddox

- 1) <u>Software</u> The Town is buying new software, but it's not the same software that the School Department bought. This is the kind of thing they need to look at. They've already decided to purchase it, but these are the kinds of things that don't make sense to him—two different groups within the Town buying software that won't be able to communicate. That doesn't make any sense. He hopes the Chairman's endeavor to go another route becomes as fruitful as he hopes.
- Old Home Days Great weather, a good group of people. He was planning to go for two hours but ended up going for two days—which may have been because of the beer tent. All of the people were pitching in—people from the Historical Society, the Cable Utility, the Fire and Police Departments—just a good time, a family event that Hudson can be proud of. There is a lot of work that has to go into that. It was a good time and hopefully will be even better after all of the television coverage it got on HCTV.
- Training with the Fire Department Selectman Maddox got to train with the Fire Department for a day—and they had fun torturing the Selectman, but that was a good thing. He thanked Capt. Tice and all the men and women of the Fire Department who showed him what it takes to be a firefighter. He assured everyone he will not be filling out any applications in the near future. He also learned a lot about Combined Dispatch and hard work that those people do. He wanted to share one of the tidbits he learned; something he had never thought about—medications. When people are on multiple medications, they should make a list of them and put them on the refrigerator because that's where the emergency people always go first, since there are often meds that need to be refrigerated. This simple action could make a life or death difference to someone you love. That was something good he learned... along with a lot of other things he'd like to forget!
- 4) <u>Undocumented Residents</u> Selectman Maddox said since the Board's last meeting, the Courts have said the Town of Hudson Police Department should not be writing citations and, just for the record, they never arrested any people for being in this country illegally. They gave them a citation, but a judge has issued the fact that that is not to be continued, as it is the responsibility of the federal government.

Motion by Selectman Maddox, seconded by Selectman Stewart, that this Board send a letter to our representatives in Congress, asking them what the federal government intends to do as their responsibility to take care of this issue, and where our elected officials stand on this issue, carried 5-0.

Selectman Maddox said he thinks the Hudson Police Department brought to all their attention something that none of them thought much about. When he used to go to Mexico, he'd stay in Texas, and you'd see it down there every day,

but it was something they didn't think about around here. The amount of people stopped and cited for this was, in his mind, he had no idea. However, it has gone by; the judge has ruled. He thinks it would be important for their federal representatives to explain where they stand in protecting the citizens of Hudson in this matter. Chairman Massey said he read in a local paper a couple days ago that the Mexican government is supplying kits to people that tell them what to do if they are going to come into this country illegally. When he hears that, he says we have a federal government that's bankrupt, so he will wholeheartedly send that message to their members of Congress.

Vision for the Future – Selectman Maddox said whether it be in the financials or, more importantly to him, the Master Plan, which is coming to fruition at the Planning Board level, that the Board needs to stop looking at small details and really take a step away and look above to see where they plan on having Hudson in 10 to 15 years. What needs to be done? They had one workshop, then the summer came upon us and people were gone, but they really need to have a session where they kick around what they think needs to be done.

(Start Tape 2-A)

### D. <u>Selectman Stewart</u>

- 1) Old Home Days was a success. The weather was with them again this year. An enormous amount of volunteer hours goes into putting on this three-day event. They have already started planning for next year. The next event is Harvest Fest on October 8.
- ICE -- Selectman Stewart said, as a follow-up to putting a list of medications on their refrigerators, after the bombing in London, they learned a lot of people put a program into their cell phones—ICE (Emergency Contact Only) and just program in ICE and whoever you designate to be your emergency contact. So, if you're in a motor vehicle accident, the emergency personnel can notify a family member a lot quicker. You can have as many contacts as you want in there. It helps if you put their name attached to ICE-1, ICE-2, ICE-3, etc. It's a simple program. The Police Department has it on its web site and they found that during the bombings in London, they were able to notify family members much more quickly this way. It's a simple PSA.
- E. <u>Selectman Massey</u> said, as Selectman MacLean indicated, he was at the bloodmobile drive today at the Community Center. He recognized the men and women in the Police Department who organizes this, the Fire Department who supports it and all the various members of the Town Hall operations that support it. Hudson is one of the largest collectors in the area. It reflects on the hard work and dedication of the Town's men and women. He left at 5:00 and as of then, they were well past the 150 unit mark of reaching their goal of 225. He thanked everyone who gives of their time and effort to make this the community effort that it is. They can all be proud of them for that.

#### 10. NONPUBLIC SESSION

Motion by Selectman Stewart, seconded by Selectman Cole, to enter Nonpublic Session, pursuant to 91-A:3 II d Consideration of the acquisition, sale or lease of real or personal property which, if discussed in public, would likely benefit a party or parties whose interests are adverse to those of the general community. Selectman Maddox didn't see how this fits under 91. This is two government agencies; there is no parties who are adverse to those of the general community. He didn't understand how they were doing this in nonpublic. Chairman Massey said because they are going to be talking about some potential negotiating strategies and that would be adverse to another party. Selectman Maddox said he would vote against this because he thinks it is time they aired this out. Selectman MacLean asked what other parties it would be adverse to, if it's just two parties involved. Chairman Massey said if you're in negotiations, then the adversity would be the other party. Vote: Motion carried 4-1. Selectman Maddox voted in opposition.

Nonpublic Session was entered into at 8:20 p.m. and was terminated at 9:00 p.m.

<u>Motion by Selectman Stewart, seconded by Selectman Cole, to seal the NPS minutes carried 4-1</u>. Selectman Maddox voted in opposition. <u>Motion by Selectman Stewart, seconded by Selectman Cole, to direct the Town Attorney to draft a warrant article, asking the public if they want to continue pursuing the purchase of Benson's carried 5-0.</u>

## 11. ADJOURNMENT

Motion by Selectman Stewart, seconded by Selectman Maddox, to adjourn at 9:01 p.m. carried unanimously.

Recorded and transcribed by Priscilla Boisvert, Executive Assistant

Kenneth J. Massey, Chairman
Teresa Stewart, Vice-Chairman
William P. Cole, Selectman
Kathleen R. MacLean, Selectman
Richard J. Maddox, Selectman

**HUDSON BOARD OF SELECTMEN** 

Hudson, NH Board of Selectmen, 8/23/05 Minutes, Page 6